

CONSTITUTION OF THE PWNDEVILS



PREAMBLE

UNDER THE REGULATIONS AND POLICES OF ARIZONA STATE UNIVERSITY, WE—THE MEMBERS OF PWNDEVILS—ESTABLISH THIS CONSTITUTION TO GOVERN THE MATTERS WITHIN OUR ORGANIZATION.

ARTICLE I - NAME

Section 1 The name of this organization shall be **pwndevils**.

ARTICLE II - PURPOSE

- **Section 1** The purpose of this organization is to:
 - 1. Provide an environment wherein the members can learn and refine their hacking skills and knowledge
 - 2. Regularly compete in hacking competitions
 - 3. Increase awareness of ethical hacking

ARTICLE III - MEMBERSHIP

- Section 1 Members are those current ASU students who are subscribed to the official pwndevils Google Group ("PGG"). If a member is no longer an ASU student or voluntarily removes themselves from PGG, then they will no longer be a member of pwndevils. Current ASU students means any person who is currently enrolled in one credit hour at ASU, or if between major semesters, a member must have been enrolled in at least one credit hour in the last major semester. A major semester is limited to the fall or spring semesters.
- **Section 2** Members have a single vote that may be cast at the officer elections.
- **Section 3** Guest member's may be appointed by any official advisor or any board member. A guest may join the Google Group, attend activities, and use resources; however, a guest has no power to vote and may not become an officer.

ARTICLE IV - OFFICERS

- **Section 1** The members must create a managing body that oversees the operations of pwndevils. This managing body ("the L33T") will initially be comprised of three officers.
- **Section 2** By a majority vote of a quorum of the L33T, the number of officers may be increased or decreased. The number of officers may never be reduced to zero, and the number of officers must remain an odd number.
- **Section 3** In general, the L33T shall have the power to do any and all acts necessary, convenient, or incidental to or furthering pwndevils's purpose.
- **Section 4** Named officer positions and responsibilities:
 - 1. Root—is the chairman pwndevil as such Root shall preside at all meetings and will execute all contracts on behalf of pwndevils.
 - 2. V33P—is the second in command and in the absence of Root V33P will have all the powers of Root. V33P is responsible for recording the minutes at all meetings and

- posting the minutes to PGG. Last, the V33P is responsible for tracking and tabulating all member votes.
- 3. Banker—is responsible for pwndevils's funds and securities and will keep a full and accurate account of receipts and disbursements in a reasonable manner.
- **Section 5** The term of office for officers is one year.
- **Section 6** An officer can be removed from office by a majority vote of all the officers of the L33T.

ARTICLE V - ELECTIONS

- **Section 1** Election of officers shall be held at the first pwndevils meeting held in April. A member needs only to state their desire to be a member of the L33T in order to be entered into the election.
- **Section 2** If a vacancy occurs in the L33T, the remaining officers may appoint, by a majority vote, a replacement that will hold office until the next regular officer election is held.
- **Section 3** The vote will be held by secret ballot and tabulated by the V33P at the meeting. If the V33P is unable to attend then the tabulation may be done by any officer. A quorum of members is not required for the vote to be valid.

ARTICLE VI - MEETINGS

- **Section 1** Regular meetings of pwndevils members for the purposes of transacting business, officer elections, shall be held yearly. The V33P will be in charge of notifying members of upcoming meetings.
- **Section 2** A quorum shall consist of no less than 3 voting members. If required, Robert's Rules of Order will be utilized for any parliamentary procedure.

ARTICLE VII - ADVISORS

- **Section 1** There shall be one or more faculty/staff advisors who shall be member's ex-officio with no voting privileges.
- **Section 2** An advisor will be designated by a majority vote of the L33T.
- **Section 3** The advisors are expected to provide guidance and advice to the L33T, as requested.

ARTICLE VIII - AMENDMENTS

Section 1 The constitution may be amended by a vote of the majority of the L33T.

| Signature of Root | Date | |
|----------------------------|------|--|
| (Officer Title) Print name | | |
| Signature of V33P | Date | |
| (Officer Title) Print name | | |
| Signature of Banker | Date | |
| (Officer Title) Print name | | |